Table of Contents

STATE	MENT OF OVERALL APPROACH AND OBJECTIVES	4
NON-D	ISCRIMINATION POLICY	5
ADMIN	IISTRATION OF PROGRAM FUNCTIONS	5
I. C	Outreach to Families and Contact with Owners	5
II. A	Acceptance of Applications, Determination of Eligibility, and Selection of Families	5
A.	Applications	5
B.		
C.	Selection of Families	9
III.	Verification of Income and Determination of Total Tenant Payment	11
A.	Verification of Income	11
B.	Determination of Total Tenant Payment	12
C.	Notification to Ineligible Applicants	
IV.	Occupancy Standards	13
V.	Issuance of Vouchers and Briefing of Families	15
A.	Issuance of Vouchers	15
B.	Briefing of Families	
C.	Voucher Extension and Expiration	18
	Voucher Issuance Denial	
VI.	Housing Voucher Program	19
A.	Payment Standards	19
	Regulatory Portability Feature	
VII.	Housing Quality Standards and Inspections	20
A.	_Initial Move-In Inspections	21
	Annual Inspections	
C.	Special Inspections.	
VIII.	Lease Approval and Contract Execution	22
A.	Request for Tenancy Approval	22
В.	Eligibility of Unit	
C.	Security Deposit Requirements/Unit Damages	
	Contract Execution	

_IX.	Payment to Owners/Utility Providers	24
_X.	Information and Assistance for Participating Families	25
_XI.	Review of Family Circumstances, Rents, and Housing Quality	25
A.	Annual Re-Examination	25
	Interim Re-Examination	
	Utility Allowances	
	Overpayments	
XII.	Family Moves	28
XIII.	PHA Denial of Housing Assistance	30
A.	Grounds for Denial of Admission	30
B.	Use of Criminal Records	31
_XIV.	PHA Termination of Assistance.	31
A.	Grounds for Termination of Assistance	31
	Evidence of Criminal Activity	
C.	Consideration of Circumstances – Denial or Termination	32
D.	Eligibility For Future Assistance	33
XV.	Owner Termination of Tenancy	34
A.	Evicting Drug Criminals	
В.	Evicting Other Criminals	34
C.	Fugitive Felon or Parole Violator	34
D.	Evidence of Criminal Activity	
E.	Termination of Tenancy Decisions	
F.	Exclusion of Culpable Household Member	36
G.	Consideration of Rehabilitation	36
H.	Added Participant Obligation	36
XVI.	Termination of HAP/Housing Voucher Contract with Owner	36
A.	Grounds for Termination of HAP/Housing Voucher Contract with Owner	
В.		
C.	Terminations Due to Insufficient Funding	37
_XVII.	Complaints and Grievance Procedures	38
A.	Complaint Inspections	
В.	Grievance Procedures	38
XVIII.	Permitted Use and Disclosure of Criminal Conviction Records	39
<u>A</u> .	Use of Criminal Records	39

B. PHA Disclosure of Records	39
C. Conditions of Disclosure	40
D. Opportunity to Dispute Decision	40
E. Record Management	40
XIX. Selection and HCV Funding Sources	
and the same and a same and a same a sam	
MONITORING PROGRAM PERFORMANCE	41
OPERATING RESERVE EXPENDITURES	41
FILE ARCHIVAL/DESTRUCTION POLICY	41
MOVE TO WORK (MTW) SUPPLEMENTAL ACTIVITIES	42

RIPLEY COUNTY PUBLIC HOUSING AGENCY ADMINISTRATIVE PLAN

Revised December 15, 2009 Revised June 9, 2016 Revised July 1, 2020 Revised March 31, 2022 Revised November 1, 2022 Revised January 1, 2023

STATEMENT OF OVERALL APPROACH AND OBJECTIVES

The Ripley County Public Housing Agency will operate in five counties in Southeast Missouri. These counties are Butler, Carter Reynolds, Ripley and Wayne. Each of the five county courts have passed a resolution agreeing that there exists within the region a shortage of safe, sanitary dwellings that low-income and elderly persons can afford. Each county court has further agreed that they will cooperate under State Law RSMO-70.010 as a region-wide PHA. Ripley County was designated the signatory county to administer the program. The prosecuting attorney of the signatory county provided a legal opinion indicating the Cooperative Agreement and Contract were in compliance with applicable laws. The Ozark Foothills Regional Planning Commission will administer the Section 8 Housing Programs (Housing Choice Vouchers, FSS, Mainstream, VASH, and TPV (Tenant Protection Vouchers) as per the contract with Ripley County Court and in accordance with HUD regulation CFR Title 24, Part 800, and will also observe local, state and federal fair housing laws.

The primary goal of this program, as expressed in the county resolution, is to provide better housing and economic conditions for low-income families. All families served by this program will reside in units that meet HUD housing quality standards.

The rental assistance provided by this program will allow individuals or families (two or more persons sharing residency whose income and resources are available to meet the family's needs, and who are related by blood, marriage, or operation of law or who give evidence of having a stable relationship which has existed over a period of time) to improve their economic situation by making it possible for the family to reallocate financial resources to other necessary expenses. This program will encourage landlords to upgrade substandard units so that they will be eligible to participate. Ultimately, it is hoped that this program will result in a general upgrading of the quality of rental housing for low-income and elderly people in this area.

NON-DISCRIMINATION POLICY

The Ripley County Public Housing Agency does not discriminate in the provision of services or the administration of its programs on the basis of race, color, religion, creed, sex, disability, familial status or national origin.

ADMINISTRATION OF PROGRAM FUNCTIONS

I. Outreach to Families and Contact with Owners

Family and owner outreach will be conducted in accordance with the PHA's Equal Opportunity Housing Plan. If those procedures are inadequate to maintain sufficient waiting lists, additional outreach will be conducted with real estate personnel and rental property owners when necessary. Efforts will be made to locate and encourage participation of owners with handicapped accessible units.

II. Acceptance of Applications, Determination of Eligibility, and Selection of Families

A. Applications

Applications are accepted at the PHA office while the waiting list is open. Interested persons will complete a written pre-application form providing basic eligibility information. Applicants who are apparently eligible in accordance with the eligibility requirements set forth in Section B below will be placed on the waiting list. Applicants who are obviously ineligible will be so notified in writing, including their right to an informal review of the decision, in accordance with the PHA's grievance procedures.

To assure that handicapped persons have an equal opportunity to apply for and participate in the PHA's programs, the PHA office is handicap accessible and is located in an accessible building. If requested, the PHA will provide an interpreter or informational materials on audiotape for persons off Limited English Proficiency (LEP). Services are available to all eligible individuals regardless of race, color, or nation origin.

B. Eligibility Requirements

To be eligible for participation in the PHA's Section 8 programs applicants must meet the following criteria:

- 1. <u>Family Composition.</u> The applicant must qualify as a family without regard to perceived sexual orientation, gender identity, or marital status.
 - a. Per CFR 982.201, a family may be a single person or group of persons that may or may not include children, elderly persons, disabled persons. A child who is temporarily away from the home because of placement in foster care is considered a member of the family.
 - b. Both members of a married couple may or may not be members of the same family as indicated by income tax filing status, bank account ownership, court documentation of a legal separation, utility account ownership, address verifications, etc. The Lease Agreement executed between the owner and the tenant shall list all members of the household.
 - c. A co-head is an individual living in the household that is equally responsible with the head of household for ensuring the family fulfills program responsibilities. The co-head is not a spouse of the head of household. A family can have a spouse, or a co-head, but not both. An emancipated minor may not be designated as a co-head.
 - d. A dependent is a family member who is less than eighteen years of age, a full-time student, or a person of any age who is disabled. A head of household, spouse, co-head, foster child, foster adult, or live-in aide can never be dependents. Dependents subject to joint custody may be considered part of the family, but may not be counted in two different assisted households. The PHA will consider any custody orders/agreements, income tax documentation, and the amount of time the child resides in the assisted unit when determining dependency.
 - e. Unmarried, non-veteran full and part-time students enrolled in institutions of higher education who are under the age of twenty-four, have no dependent children, and are seeking assistance on their own, separately from their parents, must qualify for Section 8 rental assistance. To qualify, both the student and the student's parent's (individually or jointly) must be income eligible. Parents include the biological or adoptive parents, or guardians (e.g. grand-parents, aunt/uncle, godparents, etc.). This restriction applies only if the student is not a person with a disability and who was receiving Section 8 assistance as of November 30, 2005.

An independent student is not subject to the above eligibility restriction. To be independent, the student must meet one of the following criteria:

(1) at least twenty-four years of age by December 31 of the year in which assistance is sought;

- (2) be an orphan or ward of the court through the age of 18;
- (3) be a veteran of the U.S. Armed Forces;
- (4) have legal dependents;
- (5) be a graduate/professional student;
- (6) be married;
- (7) be of legal contract age under Missouri law;
- (8) has established a household separate from his/her parents for at least one year prior to application;
- (9) was not claimed as a dependent by his/her parents pursuant to IRS regulations, as demonstrated on the parents' most recent tax forms; or,
- (10) Provides a certification from his/her parents of the amount of financial assistance to be provided by his//her parents even if no assistance is being provided.

A veteran is a person who served in the active military, naval, or air service and who was discharged or released therefrom under conditions other than dishonorable.

The PHA will verify student independence by reviewing prior year income tax returns to determine if the students was claimed as a dependent, obtaining a signed certification from each parent of the amount of financial assistance to be provided to the student, obtaining verification of proof and length of the student's residence prior to application, or any third-party documentation confirming any of the above-stated criteria.

2. <u>Household Composition.</u> A household is not the same as a family. While live-in aides, foster children, and foster adults are not considered family members, they are considered members of the household. A live-in aide is a person who resides with one or more elderly, near elderly, or disabled persons, is not obligated to support the person, and would not be living in the unit except to provide the necessary supportive services. Only the income of family members is included in subsidy calculation and reported by the PHA on Form HUD-50058.

Foster adults are person with disabilities unrelated to the assisted family and unable to live alone. A person with a disability is a person who has a disability as defined in federal law 42 U.S.C. 423 or 42 U.S.C. 6001, or a person who has a physical or mental impairment expected to be of long and indefinite duration and whose ability to live independently is

- substantially impeded by that impairment, but could be improve by more suitable housing conditions.
- 3. <u>Income Guidelines</u>. Total annual income of the household shall not exceed the applicable income limit as published by the Department of Housing and Urban Development at the time the application for assistance is processed or the housing voucher is issued. Only applicants who qualify as very low income may be issued a housing voucher.

4. <u>Previous Participation</u>.

- a. Any applicant who was formerly terminated due to the conduct of fraudulent activities in connection with any federally-subsidized housing assistance program will be ineligible to receive rental assistance from the Ripley County Public Housing Agency (PHA) until after three years have passed since termination from the program.
- b. Any applicant who was formerly terminated due to violation of family/household obligations in connection with any federally-subsidized housing program will be ineligible to receive rental assistance from the Ripley County PHA until after one year has passed since termination from the program.
- c. Any applicant who has been convicted by a court of law of drug use or other illegal criminal activity must wait three years from the date the suspicion was made public, the conviction, or termination, if applicable, whichever is later, prior to becoming eligible to receive rental assistance from the Ripley County Public Housing Agency.
- d. Any individual convicted of the manufacture of a controlled substance in a HUD assisted unit shall never again be eligible for housing assistance either as head of household or household member.
- e. Any applicant who currently owes money to any PHA in with any federal housing assistance program may be placed on the waiting list; however, he or she must reimburse the PHA in full prior to a voucher being issued.
 - (1) if the applicant has breached a previous repayment agree ment with the PHA, full reimbursement must be made prior to participation in the rental assistance program.
 - (2) if the PHA learns, during the course of the assistance contract, that an assistance recipient holds a debt with another PHA, the recipient will not be recertified for assistance until the debt is satisfied. Original signed and dated documentation from the debt holder must be

presented as evidence of payment by the assistance recipient to the PHA prior to the continuation of assistance.

- f. Any applicant denied rental assistance may request in writing an informal hearing appealing the decision to deny such assistance within ten days of the date of notification.
- 5. Other Eligibility Requirements. Any other eligibility requirements as may be established from time to time by the Department of Housing and Urban Development.

C. Selection of Families

1. Preferences

- a. An applicant may claim qualification for a preference at the time of application by certifying to the PHA that they qualify for local preferences (defined in Paragraph 4 of this section). After preliminary verification by the PHA, the applicant will be given preference status on the waiting list.
- b. All local preferences shall be considered as equal with no ranking applied.
- c. Before issuing a voucher, a final verification shall be made by the PHA that the family is, at the time the assistance is offered, qualified to receive a local preference.

2. Waiting Lists

- a. Applicants will be placed on the waiting list without regard to race, color, religion, creed, sex, disability, familial status, or national origin.
- b. Applicants will be ranked and placed on the waiting list by time and date of application, as well as preference status, only.
- c. All changes to information contained within a submitted application (including a change of address) must be requested by the applicant in writing.
- d. When the waiting list is to be opened, an announcement shall be made in a newspaper of general circulation prior to the first day applications are accepted.
- e. If insufficient funding exists to admit all eligible applicants to the PHA's Section 8 program, the PHA may suspend the taking of applications.

- f. The PHA may purge the waiting list at any time at its discretion after considering the length of the waiting list, staff resources, how quickly applicants are being selected from the list, and the number of families not responding to correspondence from the PHA. Applicants who do not respond to requests for information, updates, or appointments will be removed from the waiting list.
- 3. <u>Contact of Applicants.</u> When an opening occurs, the applicant at the top of the waiting list will be contacted via regular mail at the most recent address on file at the PHA. If an applicant does not respond by the deadline date specified in the contact letter, the application will be canceled and their name will be removed from the waiting list.
- 4. <u>Local Preferences.</u> An applicant may qualify for a local preference if, at the time of application, the following criteria has been met:
 - The applicant is an individual who is experiencing homelessness as documented by a third-party support service. Up to 10 vouchers at any time are available to be issued for individuals experiencing homelessness. Once those vouchers are filled, individuals will be required to wait until one of the 10 vouchers are open before receiving assistance. All other program requirements shall be followed by the individual receiving an emergency voucher.
- 5. Verification Procedures for Local Preferences
 - a. Homelessness Verification of homelessness status is established by the following documentation:
 - (1) Presentation of third-party documentation from a support service organization verifying the individual is homeless. Support service organizations are defined as Family Counseling Center, Southeast Missouri Behavioral Health, South Central Missouri Community Action Agency, Catholic Charities, or any other similar support service organization. All other Section 8 policies and procedures must be followed by the individual upon receiving an emergency voucher.
- 6. Denial of Local Preference Status
 - a. If the PHA determines that an applicant does not meet the criteria for receiving a local preference, the PHA will promptly provide the applicant with written notice of the determination. The notice shall contain a brief statement of the reasons for the denial and state that the applicant has the right to meet with the PHA's designee to review the decision. If requested, the meeting must be conducted by a person or persons designated by the PHA. Those designated may be an officer or employee of the PHA, other than the person who made or reviewed the determination, or his or her subordinate.

Following a final decision to deny a local preference, the applicant will be placed upon the waiting list according to the time & date the application was made.

III. Verification of Income and Determination of Total Tenant Payment

A. Verification of Income

- 1. When an applicant has been contacted for an opening, a formal written application shall be completed and signed by all household members eighteen years of age and older. All household members eighteen years of age and older must certify that income and other information provided to the PHA is accurate and complete as of the date of briefing notification. They must also certify as to their understanding that false statements are punishable under federal law and grounds from denial of assistance and/or termination from the program.
- 2. Applicants shall be required to sign HUD-9886, *Authorization for the Release of Information*. This form must be signed by the head of household, spouse, and all family members at least 18 years of age who will be living in the unit. Refusal to sign this form will result in denial of participation and cancelation of the application.
- 3. Complete and accurate third-party verification of identity and citizenship must be provided for all family members. To meet this requirement, a birth certificate and proof of social security number are required for each household member.
- 4. All assets held by an applicant must be reported to the PHA and certified by original third-party documentation. Assets held by an applicant and valued at \$5,000 or more must be included within the housing assistance payment calculation. All asset holdings and valuation will be verified by third party consultation and documentation except for when either of the following circumstances apply:
 - a) the independent third-party source is not capable or willing to provide documentation; or,
 - b) it is not cost effective or reasonable for the PHA to obtain the documentation.
- 5. All information relative to family composition, total family income, allowable deductions, and preference will be verified and all verified findings will be documented and placed in the applicant's file. Failure of the applicant to provide requested documentation or adequate information for verification within ten working days of the PHA's request will result in cancelation of the application and removal from the waiting list.
- 6. Allowable medical deductions shall be unreimbursed, projected for the

following twelve-month period, and determined per the current IRS 502 Publication. Childcare costs for children twelve years of age and younger are allowable deductions regardless of whether or not other adult household members are available to provide such care. Third party verification of the childcare expenses must be obtained.

- 7. A Zero-Income Worksheet must be completed by all families claiming that no income exists to support the household. The Zero-Income Worksheet must be completed within 60 days of voucher issuance or upon notification to the PHA of loss of income and updated annually during the Annual Recertification process.
- 8. Whenever possible, verification will be made by third-party contact.

B. Determination of Total Tenant Payment

- 1. Annual income is defined as the total family income from all sources anticipated to be received for the 12-month period following the effective date of the initial determination or the effective date of re-examination. The standards used to calculate annual income will be as follows:
 - a) fifty-two weekly checks
 - b) twenty-six bi-weekly checks
 - c) twelve monthly checks
- 2. All total Tenant Payment calculations will be computed in accordance with the definitions and procedures set forth in the federal regulations governing the Section 8 programs, and any amendments thereto. Computations will be re-calculated frequently to ensure accuracy.
- 3. The current HUD Fair Market Rents (FMR) shall be used when calculating subsidy and total tenant payments for an assisted unit.
- 4. Utility allowance calculations will be based upon the lesser of the number of bedrooms as listed upon the voucher or the actual number of bedrooms within the subsidized unit.
- 5. An exclusion of student income but reported upon Form HUD -50058.

C. Notification to Ineligible Applicants

Applicants determined to be ineligible following verification procedures shall be given prompt written notice stating the reason and informing the applicant of the right to an informal review of the decision, in accordance with the PHA's grievance procedures.

IV. Determination of Voucher Size

A. PHA Occupancy Standards

The unit size designated on the housing voucher will be the smallest number of bedrooms consistent with the following PHA Occupancy Standards:

- 1. The dwelling unit shall contain at least one bedroom of appropriate size for each two persons residing in the household regardless of age or sex. When funding is available, one bedroom will be assigned for the head of household and/or spouse or co-head, and one bedroom awarded to each two family members, regardless of sex, age or relationship. Zero- bedroom vouchers will be issued only to one-person households, and zero- bedroom units will be approved only for one-person households. Foster children and live-in aides will be included in determining unit size. A child who is temporarily away from the home because of placement within foster care is considered a member of the family.
- 2. When determining voucher unit size, live-in aides shall occupy a private bedroom. The need for live-in aides shall be verified by the written statement of a healthcare professional per the PHA's *Policy and Procedure* for *Reasonable Accommodation* (see Section IV. B.). Any individual whose income and resources are available to meet the household's needs may not serve as a live-in aide within that household. The live-in aide must be listed as a household member upon the Housing Assistance Payments (HAP) Contract between the property owner and the PHA, the Lease Agreement between the tenant and the property owner, and the 50058 reporting form submitted by the PHA to HUD. The live-in aide may be compensated or not compensated. A live-in aide may be disabled or not disabled. The income earned by a live-in aide is not considered in the calculation of family income and is not included or excluded for PHA reporting purposes to HUD.
- 3. In the event of initial voucher issuance, only those individuals listed upon the Lease Agreement between the Owner and the Tenant may be considered within the initial occupancy standard calculation. The PHA must be provided and maintain within its record the most recent copy of the Lease Agreement between the Owner and the Tenant.
- 4. Additional bedrooms <u>may</u> be granted for the placement/storage of medical equipment if properly documented per the criteria found at 24 CFR 5.403 and per the PHA's *Policy and Procedure for Reasonable Accommodation*. If the additional bedroom is found not to be utilized for such purposes, the payment standard for the home will be reduced to the appropriate unit size and the family may be terminated from the program.

B. Reasonable Accommodation

A *Reasonable Accommodation* is intended to provide persons with disabilities with equal opportunity to participate in Ripley County Public Housing Agency's rental assistance

program through the modification of program policies and procedures. An accommodation may be considered "reasonable" if it does not cause an undue burden or fundamental alteration in the nature of the housing program.

A *disability* is a physical or mental impairment which substantially limits one or more major life activities, such as caring for one's self, performing major tasks, walking, seeing, hearing, speaking, breathing, learning and working; a record of such an impairment; or being regarded as having such an impairment. The term disability does not include current illegal use of a controlled substance.

Ripley County PHA will consider a request for a reasonable accommodation when a disability interferes with equal opportunity to participate in the housing program and a reasonable modification of policies and procedures will provide equal access to program services. Requests for reasonable accommodations will be considered on a case-by-case basis.

The applicant/participant, or someone acting on their behalf, must submit a request in writing, if possible, for a reasonable accommodation. The request must include the following:

- 1. the reason for the request;
- 2. documentation a disability exists;
- 3. a proposal for a reasonable accommodation, which, if implemented, would result in overcoming barriers to equal access and facilitate the use of the housing program; and,
- 4. documentation of the involvement of any person, agency or organization, which will assist or monitor the implementation of the reasonable accommodation requested.

If you make a reasonable accommodation request, Ripley County PHA may request reliable documentation that you have a disability and verification of the need for the particular accommodation(s). The type of verification to be provided depends on the specifics of the situation. The verification must be provided by any third-party provider who can substantiate your disability on forms that the Ripley County PHA provides. The third party provider should be a professional knowledgeable about the situation and competent to render an opinion.

Any applicant/participant may request assistance by completing a *Request for a Reasonable Accommodation* provided by the PHA, or ask that the form be provided in an equally effective format or means of communication. The PHA Director shall oversee compliance with reasonable accommodation requirements. All decisions regarding a request for a reasonable accommodation will be provided in writing within fifteen days of the receipt of all required documentation with implementation to occur within thirty days. Requestors may appeal an unfavorable decision regarding the accommodation pursuant to the PHA's Grievance Procedures. All verification forms disclosing private medical facts will remain confidential and shall be maintained within the tenant file which is marked "Confidential" and locked away when not attended.

V. Issuance of Vouchers and Briefing of Families

A. Issuance of Vouchers

When sufficient funding is available, and verification of all information has been completed and all require documentation received, the PHA shall issue a Housing voucher to the applicant. The PHA housing coordinator must submit Form HUD-50058 (Family Report) to HUD no later than sixty calendar days from the effective date of any action including the issuance of a Housing voucher.

B. Briefing of Families

- 1. The PHA will schedule an appointment with the applicant for a briefing via letter or phone communication with a follow-up letter. If the applicant fails to keep the appointment, a second appointment will be scheduled. If the applicant fails to keep the second appointment, his/her application will be application will be canceled and his/her name removed from the waiting list.
- 2. Upon issuance of a voucher, the applicant and all adult family members will be briefed by a member of the PHA staff, at which time a full explanation of program requirements will be provided to the family, including the following:
 - a) family and owner responsibilities under the program;
 - b) information on how to find a suitable unit;
 - c) information on applicable Housing Quality Standards and procedures for inspections;
 - d) significant aspects of applicable state and local laws and fair housing laws;
 - e) information regarding Fair Market Rents or Payment Standards, determination of Total Tenant Payment and Tenant Rent, and explanation of determination of Housing Assistance Payment;
 - f) portability procedures; and,
 - g) procedures for notifying the PHA of any required changes in income or family composition that are required to be reported.

The PHA will perform necessary criminal history background checks in the State of Missouri and in other states where the household members where known to have resided. The PHA must ask whether a member of the household is subject to a lifetime sex offender registration requirement in

any state. The PHA will utilize the Dru Sjodin National Sex Offender Database found at www.nsopw.gov to determine if any household member is subject to the requirement. The PHA must offer the family the opportunity to remove the ineligible family member from the household.

The PHA must destroy the results of the criminal background check, but record that the screening was conducted as well as the type of screening and date performed. The PHA must provide a copy of the information to the subject of the record and the applicant; an opportunity for the applicant to dispute the information must be afforded per the PHA's Grievance Procedures.

- 3. The applicant will be given a voucher holder's packet at the briefing, which shall include the following:
 - a) request for Tenancy Approval;
 - b) lease addendum which includes required lease provisions and prohibited lease provisions;
 - c) information regarding lead-based paint poisoning hazards, symptoms, blood level screening, and precautions;
 - d) fair housing information and housing discrimination complaint form as required by HUD;
 - e) the PHA's Grievance Procedures, which includes procedures for conducting informal hearings and for requesting such hearings;
 - f) fraud warning letter; and,
 - g) information on Total Tenant Payment and projected assistance payments.

The tenant will be held accountable to all information and procedures presented and covered during the briefing.

- 4. Voucher holders will also receive information regarding the requirement for a minimum rent amounting to \$50 (unless the voucher holder meets one of the hardship exemption criteria), their requirement to pay 30%, but not more than 40%, of their income for rent at the time of initial lease-up, and the maximum amount of subsidy they will receive.
- 5. If a family requests a hardship exemption, the PHA will suspend the minimum rent requirement and adjust the HAP accordingly, effective on the first of the month following the family's request for the hardship exemption, continuing until the PHA determines whether there is a qualifying financial hardship and whether the hardship is temporary or long term. All hardship exemptions require the approval of the PHA Executive Director. The financial hardship exemption only applies to payment of the minimum rent

to calculate the total tenant payment. The TTP is still calculated, excluding the minimum rent, and the family pays the higher of 32% of monthly adjusted income, 10% of monthly income, and the welfare rent, as applicable, during the term of the suspended minimum rent. Financial hardship includes circumstances in which families:

- a) Have lost eligibility or are awaiting an eligibility determination for a federal, state, or local assistance program, including a family that has a noncitizen household member lawfully admitted for permanent residence who would be entitled to public benefits but for Title IV of the Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity Act of 1996, 8 U.S.C. §1601 et seq.
- b) Would be evicted as a result of imposing the minimum rent requirement
- c) Experience income decreases because of changed circumstances, including the loss of employment
- d) Have a death in the family
- e) Require a reasonable accommodation related to a family member's disability

If the PHA determines there is no qualifying hardship, the minimum rent is reinstated retroactively to the date of the suspension. The family must reimburse the PHA for the difference. A payment plan may be offered if the amount is over \$50.

If the PHA determines the qualifying hardship is temporary (circumstances causing the hardship are expected to last 90 days or less), the PHA suspends the minimum rent for a period of 90 days from the beginning of the month following the date of the family's request. At the end of the 90-day period, the PHA must reinstate the minimum rent retroactively to the date of suspension. The family will be given the option of a payment plan to cover the minimum rent charges accumulated during the suspension period.

If the PHA determines the qualifying hardship is long term (circumstances causing the hardship are expected to last more than 90 days), the PHA will exempt the family from the minimum rent requirements from the beginning of the month following the date of the family's request. The exemption continues until the hardship no longer exists. The family is not required to repay the difference between the TTP and the minimum rent to the PHA once the hardship is over. If the PHA denies a long-term hardship the family will have the option to request an informal hearing.

6. The PHA staff will provide voucher holders with a list of available units in the PHA's jurisdiction, based upon information received from interested landlords.

7. Policy on Information Provided to Owners: When the family submits a Request for Tenancy Approval, the PHA will provide the prospective Owner, upon request, with the family's current and prior address as shown in the PHA's records. If the PHA has this information, it will also provide the name and address of the landlord at the family's current and prior address.

The PHA will inform the owner that it is the landlord's responsibility to screen prospective tenants for suitability as tenants as evidenced by the family's previous rental history. The PHA will provide the landlord with the following information upon written request:

- a) Current and prior address of the prospective tenant as recorded by the PHA
- b) Name and address if known to the PHA of the prospective tenant's current and prior landlord

All new families and all families preparing to move will be informed about this policy through information included in the information packet provided at the briefings for new and moving families.

C. Voucher Extension and Expiration

- 1. The voucher is initially issued for a sixty-day period, and the family must submit a Request for Tenancy Approval within that period, unless an extension is granted by the PHA.
- 2. The PHA will grant a suspension of the voucher term for the full period of time after the family submits the request for tenancy until the PHA approves or denies the request
- 3. One extensions of thirty days may be granted by the Housing Coordinator upon request of the family, after considering the following facts. Any request for an extension must be submitted in writing via paper, email, or fax.
 - a) The degree to which the family has made an effort to locate a unit.
 - b) Reporting on progress in finding a unit and assistance requested from the PHA office.
 - c) Extenuating circumstances, such as death or illness, which prevented the family from locating a unit.
 - d) Whether the family size or special requirements made finding a unit more difficult.
- 4. Recipients of VASH vouchers may be granted up to two thirty-day extensions by the PHA.

D. Voucher Issuance Denial

- 1. In the event an assistance applicant misses at least two briefing appointments, a voucher will not be issued and the applicant must reapply for assistance.
- 2. Applicants must provide all required documentation at time of briefing, or a voucher will not be issued.
- 3. Any and all debts owed by the applicant to another federally-subsidized housing program must be paid in full prior to briefing. Signed original third party verification of payment must be provided to the PHA at time of briefing.

VI. Housing Voucher Program

A. Payment Standards

The PHA shall adopt and maintain a *Payment Standard Schedule*, by unit size, based on the best information available. Initially, the payment standards will be based on the published Section 8 Existing Housing Fair Market Rents. The PHA will review the payment standards annually and, at its discretion, may adopt increases of the amount.

The payment standard in place on the effective date of the HAP contract remains in place for the duration of the contract term unless the PHA increases or decreases its payment standards.

If a payment standard is increased, the higher payment standard is first used in calculating the HAP beginning at the effective date of the family's first regular (annual) reexamination on or after the effective date of the increase in the payment standard amount. Families requiring or requesting interim reexaminations will not have their HAP payments calculated using the higher payment standard until next annual reexamination.

If the amount on the PHA's payment standard schedule is decreased during the term of the HAP contract, the PHA will use the lower payment standard to calculate the family's HAP beginning on the effective date of the family's second regular reexamination following the effective date of the decrease in payment standard.

B. Regulatory Portability Feature

1. <u>Definition and Eligibility.</u> Portability is the ability for housing voucher holder to move from one jurisdiction to another with continued assistance. To be eligible for regulatory portability, a family must have documentation such as a lease or utility bills to prove they live in the "Initial PHA" jurisdiction and hold a current housing voucher or have been a current participant in the Initial PHA's housing voucher program for a minimum of

one year. A participant may move to another jurisdiction and maintain assistance through another public housing agency within the first year of assistance if the move is required for reasons of employment, education, or health.

- 2. <u>Policy as Initial PHA.</u> Portable Housing vouchers will be limited to 15% of total units under lease in the PHA's Housing voucher Program. Moves will be limited to one in any 12-month period. The receiving PHA will be reimbursed when a bill has been received indicating the family is under a housing voucher contract, as per PIH Notice 2008-43.
- 3. <u>Policy as Receiving PHA.</u> The PHA shall absorb incoming vouchers at the PHA's discretion. If the voucher is not absorbed, the PHA shall bill the initial PHA for the housing assistance payment made on behalf of the family, and for 80% of the initial PHA's ongoing administrative fee for each month the family is under lease on the first day of the month, as well as any applicable hard-to-house fee.
- 4. The PHA may, from time to-time, limit portability moves when faced with the receipt of insufficient funding from HUD to pay its housing assistance payments obligations. This may be done to prevent the termination of assistance for participant families. When faced with such a shortage, the PHA may suspend portability moves for all families wishing to move to a higher cost unit, whether the desired unit is located within or outside of the PHA's jurisdiction. If the desired unit is located outside of the PHA's jurisdiction and the receiving PHA is willing to absorb the participant family, then the PHA must allow the family to move. The PHA must maintain a dated listing of all families who have been denied portability moves. Once sufficient funding has been restored to the PHA so as to allow portability moves, the PHA must first provide the opportunity to move to those families upon said list. Voucher holders will be notified by mail when the funding is available to allow them to port.

VII. Housing Quality Standards and Inspections

The PHA will use the Housing Quality Standards (HQS) as set forth in the HUD regulations along with the corresponding HUD inspection forms for unit inspections. For the purposes of the HQS inspections, life-threatening violations will include non-working smoke alarms, gas leaks, no heat, raw sewage, structural failures, large openings in ceiling or walls, and fire hazards.

Inspections will be conducted by the PHA's Housing Inspector or a trained member of the PHA's staff. A person eighteen years of age or older must be present during the HQS inspection to allow the inspector entry to the premises. Termination and/or non-issuance of voucher may result if the family/applicant fails to have an adult eighteen years of age or older present during the inspection or fails to reschedule an inspection no later than 9:00 a.m. the day before the scheduled inspection.

A. Initial Move-In Inspections

Following submission of a Request for Tenancy Approval (RTA), an initial inspection will be scheduled for the unit. Following receipt of a fully executed RTA, an HQS inspection of the selected unit will be scheduled. All initial HQS inspections must be conducted prior to family move-in.

If the selected unit fails to meet the HQS, the owner will be notified in writing of any deficiencies and provided a thirty-day timeframe to make repairs. Following completion of repairs, a re-inspection will be conducted prior to execution of the contract for housing assistance payments. All units must pass all of the acceptability criteria of HQS prior to being placed on the housing voucher program. All utilities in the unit must be turned on prior to the unit being inspected.

Both the owner and prospective tenant may attend the move-in inspection so as to assist the housing inspectors in identifying existing damages within the unit.

B. Inspections

Each assisted unit must be inspected at least bi-annually prior to the annual recertification date. If the unit fails to meet HQS, the owner/tenant will be notified in writing of any deficiencies and provided a specific timeframe to make repairs. In the event of life-threatening deficiencies, repairs must be made within twenty-four hours of notification to the owner. All other repairs must be made within thirty days following notification to the owner. An extension of fifteen additional days may be provided at the discretion of the PHA if needed to properly repair a deficiency that is not life-threatening. Life threatening deficiencies include, but are not limited to the following:

- lack of heat when the outside temperature is below 40 degrees Fahrenheit;
- lack of utility service due to the owner action or inaction;
- junction/circuit breaker boxes missing cover or with open knock-outs;
- electrical outlets and light switch covers that are missing;
- sewage backup:
- GFCI outlets that do not function properly;
- flooding;
- Improper flue connection for furnace or water heater;
- missing or non-functioning smoke detectors; and,
- any other deficiencies as determined by the PHA.

Following the completion of repairs the HQS inspector will verify that the repairs were made. Failure to repair the repair a non-life-threatening HQS deficiency may result in temporary non-payment of rent to the owner by the PHA or termination of rental assistance.

Failure to repair a life-threatening HQS deficiency will result in immediate termination of the HAP Contract and non-payment of rent to the owner by the PHA

beginning with the date the repair(s) was/were to be made in correcting the life-threatening deficiency.

C. Special Inspections

Special HQS inspections of assisted units may occur for the purposes of quality control or other purposes as determined by the Housing Coordinator. The owner and tenant will be provided written notice of the scheduled special inspection a minimum of twenty-four hours prior to each special inspection.

VIII. Lease Approval and Contract Execution

A. Request for Tenancy Approval

When a voucher holder finds a suitable unit, a *Request for Tenancy Approval (RTA)* shall be signed by the family and owner and submitted to the PHA for determination of unit eligibility. A copy of the *Lease Agreement* to be executed between the owner and tenant must be attached to the *Request for Tenancy Approval*. The PHA shall not accept an incomplete or improperly completed *RTA*. All *RTA* 's submitted to the PHA will be date stamped upon receipt.

Incomplete or unacceptable *RTA* 's submitted in person, must not be accepted by the PHA and a verbal explanation pertaining to the reason for non-acceptance shall be offered by the PHA. Incomplete or unacceptable *RTA* 's submitted via regular mail shall be returned to the voucher holder along with a written explanation of what is needed to render the request acceptable. A voucher extension may be provided by the PHA when permissible. An HQS inspection will be conducted within fifteen days of acceptance of the *RTA* by the PHA.

B. Eligibility of Unit

- 1. Upon receipt of an executed Request for Lease Approval, a Housing Quality Standards (HQS) inspection will be scheduled and conducted. All utilities in the unit must be on and properly functioning prior to the inspection date.
- 2. All utilities within the subsidized unit must be provided through accounts established with the local utility provider by the landlord or a member of the household.
- 3. Under the voucher program, the unit must be evaluated to insure the gross rent does not exceed applicable payment standard limitations. Exceptions to the payment standard may be granted when necessary to allow Section 8 voucher holders to rent handicapped accessible units for a reasonable accommodation, Such exceptions will be at the discretion of the PHA.

Under the voucher Program, the unit must be evaluated for rent reasonableness. Current rents of comparable unassisted units, will be considered when determining the reasonableness of the contract rent being requested by the owner. Annual rent surveys will be conducted by the PHA staff to assist in rent reasonableness determinations and will ensure that the rent charged is not in excess of rents currently being charged by the owner for comparable unassisted units.

- 4. The PHA may provide a lease designed for the Section 8 voucher program if the owner does not provide a lease. If the owner proposes to use his/her own lease, it must be approved by the PHA in advance of execution of the HAP Contract and must not vary in content from that used by the Owner for the rental of unassisted residential properties in the locality. A copy of the *Tenancy Addendum* (HUD Form 52641–A) must be attached to as part of each *Lease Agreement* between the Owner and Tenant prior to execution.
- 5. The PHA will determine owner eligibility by assuring there is no possible conflict of interest and that the owner has not breached a prior Housing Assistance Payments (HAP) Contract with the PHA. The owner shall be required to furnish satisfactory proof of ownership of the unit to the PHA upon request.
- 6. Upon approval of suitable unit, final calculations will be made to determine total tenant payment, tenant rent, and housing assistance payments.
- 7. The owner must notify the PHA if an assisted family is late in paying their tenant rent portion for any given month. The PHA will not be responsible for indirectly enforcing payment of the tenant rent portion if not notified by the owner of the late payment within thirty days of the last day of the month in which the rent payment was due.

C. Security Deposit Requirements/Unit Damages

- 1. The maximum security deposit the owner may collect may not exceed one month contract rent or be in excess of private market practice of owner's unassisted units.
- 2. For families leasing in place, owners may:
 - a. retain the original security deposit.
 - b. refund the original security deposit amount and collect a new deposit in accordance with Section 8 program requirements.
- 3. The PHA does not monitor damages to the assisted unit and cannot collect money owed to a landlord as a result of tenant damage to the unit. Should a tenant damage an assisted unit during the contract period and the owner obtain a legal judgment against the tenant in a court of law, the PHA can

require the family pay the owner per the judgment order, or face termination of assistance.

D. Contract Execution

- 1. Families will be encouraged to have owners contact the PHA office if they are uninformed of or have questions about the program. All program requirements will be thoroughly reviewed with owners prior to execution of contract documents.
- 2. The lease agreement between the tenant and the owner shall be executed in conjunction with the Housing Assistance Payments (HAP) Contract executed by the owner and the PHA.
- 3. Whenever possible, all contracts for rental assistance shall be executed on the 1st day of the month.
- 4. In the absence of any owner to execute contracts, the PHA may conduct business with an authorized agent who has been designated in writing by the owner.
- 5. The head of household or spouse of the tenant family must be at least 18 years of age to sign the lease. A minor who is sixteen or seventeen years of age may contract for housing provided the conditions found at RSMO Chapter 431, Section 431.056 are met.
- 6. All spouses must be listed as a household member upon the lease regardless of separation status, unless the head of household can prove with third party original documentation that his/her spouse is not residing within the unit due to employment, study, medical treatment, etc., which requires the spouse to live elsewhere due to geographical distance. In such situations, the Executive Director will review the documentation provided and render a decision regarding the matter.
- 7. All utility accounts associated with the unit and for which the tenant is financially responsible, as specified in the lease agreement, shall be listed in a member of the household's name prior to execution of the HAP Contract.
- 8. Contracts will not be executed until the unit has fully passed inspection and all required paperwork has been fully executed and received by the PHA—including a completed and signed W-9 Form. No housing assistance payments will be released until the contract documents have been signed by all parties.

IX. Payment to Owners/Utility Providers

All regular Housing Assistance Payments (HAP) will be received by direct deposit on the 1st day of each calendar month (if the owner has authorized) or mailed via regular mail no later than the 10th day of each calendar month by the Executive Secretary. A HAP Payment

Register will be maintained by the PHA's Fiscal Officer to insure accurate payments to owners. The PHA's fiscal officer will maintain frequent quality control monitoring of HAP payments and the individual register to cross-check accuracy. Utility checks, if any, will be mailed directly to the utility providers by the Accounts Payable Housing Coordinator. (Utility checks for participants of the Home Ownership Program will be mailed directly to the family.) Should a participant family vacate an assisted unit without proper notification, HAP payments will cease as of the date the family vacated the unit.

The initial HAP payment for a portable unit will be issued by the initial PHA within thirty calendar days of the receipt of Part II of Form HUD-52665 from the receiving PHA. Subsequent HAP payments for portable units will be issued by the initial PHA to the receiving PHA no later than the fifth working day of each month pursuant to PIH Notice 2008-43.

Prior to the issuance of any payment, the PHA must ensure they have received a fully-executed W-9 form by the owner. A copy of the owner's W-9 forms will be filed by the PHA. The names listed upon the HAP Contract and W-9 form MUST match exactly. The completed W-9 form and HAP Contract will be maintained by the PHA throughout the course of the family's participation in the assistance program. In the event both a Social Security Number (SSN) and Employer Identification Number (EIN) have been provided, the EIN shall be used for the purposes of completing Form 1099.

The PHA shall never destroy a fully completed and signed W-9 form it has received from an owner or previous owner. The PHA shall maintain HAP contracts during the term of assisted tenancy and for at least 3 years thereafter. The PHA's executive secretary shall retain all originally submitted W-9 forms within a specified location. Newly submitted W-9 forms shall be attached by the executive secretary to formerly submitted W-9 forms when the information provided upon the form has changed.

X. Information and Assistance for Participating Families

The PHA will provide as much community support services information and assistance as possible within the limits of the administrative fee. Referrals to appropriate agencies will be made whenever necessary.

XI. Review of Family Circumstances, Rents, and Housing Quality

Tenants are required to complete a re-examination annually or when a change in household composition occurs.

A. Annual Re-Examination

1. Family income and composition will be reviewed annually prior to HAP Contract expiration. The same procedures used for obtaining and verifying income and deductions information upon admission will be used during reexaminations. Inspections of dwelling units will be made bi-annually.

- 2. Processing will begin ninety (90) days prior to the anniversary date of the HAP/Housing voucher contract to insure sufficient completion time. All Annual Re-Examinations must be completed at least thirty days prior to the expiration of the HAP Contract or assistance will terminate on the HAP Contract expiration date.
- 3. A change in the family's TTP will be effective on the anniversary date, allowing for a thirty day notice to tenant of any substantial increase in their portion of payments.
- 4. Annual rent increases for units under the housing voucher program are not limited by the PHA, but must meet rent reasonableness criteria as determined by the PHA. All rent increases must be made by the owner in writing to the tenant and the PHA 60 days prior to the anniversary date of the HAP/Housing voucher contract.
- 5. If the unit-size eligibility has increased or decreased during the HAP contract term, the PHA will issue a new voucher of appropriate size to the family at the first re-certification following the change or family relocation, whichever comes first as per 24 CFR 982.505 (4).
- 6. If, during the Annual Reexamination, it is determined that a participant family's calculated payment standard exceeds the calculated gross rent, then the family may move.
- 7. Families who fail to cooperate with the PHA during re-examination procedure, including providing necessary information, inspection process, or completion of repairs due to damages caused by the family may be terminated from the program.
- 8. Assistance for families who fail to report income or engage in fraudulent activity during the re-examination process, will be terminated immediately.

B. Interim Re-Examination

1. Participants are required to report any changes in family composition which occur between annual re-examinations within ten days of the family's knowledge of such event. All changes in household composition must be verified by the Owner and Tenant through the provision of a new Lease Agreement to the PHA. Post verification as provided by the U.S. Postal Service shall suffice as proof of residence when determining household occupancy within an assisted unit.

If one member of a married couple vacates the unit, the remaining spouse will be required to provide proof that his/her husband/wife has vacated the unit. Sufficient proof may consist of the following:

a) documentation that the vacating spouse has executed a Lease

Agreement elsewhere;

b) documentation that the vacating spouse had utilities turned on at another location

If the PHA discovers an overpayment of rental assistance due to unreported changes in family composition, the PHA may, in its sole discretion, terminate the family's assistance. The family will be charged for the amount of the overpayment and the debt will be entered into the HUD Enterprise Income Verification (EIV) System.

- 2. Participants may request an interim re-examination for any changes in family income or deductions that may result in a change in the family's TTP.
- 3. Any participant family whose total household income increases or who acquires a **new** income source during the contract period is required to report the income change(s) within ten days of knowledge of the increase/change. The family will be subject to an interim re-examination, change in the housing assistance payment, and change in tenant rent portion.

If the PHA discovers an overpayment of rental assistance has occurred, the PHA, in its sole discretion, may terminate the family's assistance, and must charge the family for the amount of the overpayment. Following discovery of a second incident of non-reporting of change in income by the participant family per the above direction, the HAP Contract will be terminated and housing assistance payments will cease. All debts will be reported into the Enterprise Income Verification (EIV) system.

- 5. Rent adjustments from interim re-examinations will be effective as follows:
 - a. Decreases in the rental subsidy amount will be effective on the first day of the second month following the notification of change in household income.
 - b. Increases in the rental subsidy amount will be effective on the first day of the month following verification of the change in household income.

C. Utility Allowances

The PHA shall review its utility allowance schedule annually and make revisions if there has been a change of ten percent or more in the utility rate for a given category since the last rate revision. The PHA must use the utility allowance for the smaller of the voucher size as determined by the PHA or size of unit actually leased by the family. Higher utility allowances for persons with disabilities are permissible if needed as a reasonable accommodation in accordance with 24 CFR part 8.

D. Overpayments

When it has been determined that assistance payments were made pursuant to the provision of fraudulent information or when changes in household composition or income were not timely reported by the family, the PHA will require repayment of the amount overpaid. The amount of the overpayment shall be calculated based upon the most recent and accurate information available to the PHA. No variances or waivers may be granted regarding the repayment liability. To maintain assistance, all debt must be satisfied in full or a Repayment Agreement, approved by the PHA Executive Director, must be executed and signed by all adult household members.

Monthly repayment amounts plus gross rent should not exceed 40% of family income; although, a minimum monthly payment of \$50 is required unless reduced by an approved temporary or long-term hardship. Failure to abide by the terms of the *Repayment Agreement* may result in the termination of assistance.

XII. Family Moves

A. Families Who Wish to Move/Relocate

The family is required to notify the PHA of intent to relocate through the provision of a fully executed *Intent to Move Form* or written notification to landlord. It is stressed to all families during briefing sessions of their responsibility to give proper written notice of any intent to move, whether or not they desire to continue with the program. The PHA requires written notification by the tenant of any intent to relocate prior to thirty days before the first of the month during which the tenant prefers to relocate. The PHA also encourages the tenant to give written notice to the owner within the proper time frame and in the proper method as stated within their Lease Agreement. A participant family may move either within or outside of the PHA's jurisdiction.

Voluntary family relocations are prohibited within the first year of assistance. Voluntary relocations following the first year of assistance are limited to once per twelve-month period. Any participant family may voluntarily relocate at any time with proper notification to PHA and landlord provided they have not relocated within their prior twelve months of program participation.

Voluntary moves by a participant family are prohibited if any of the following conditions apply:

- 1) the family owes money to the Ripley County PHA;
- 2) an unsatisfied debt is shown within the Enterprise Income Verification (EIV) System for any member of the household;
- 3) the family has failed to satisfy a debt resulting from its failure to make monthly rental payments to the owner pursuant to the existing PHA-approved Lease Agreement; or,
- 4) the family has failed to satisfy a debt owed to any other party as determine by a legal court-ordered Judgment and assuming the debt resulted from participation within a federally-subsidized housing program.

The PHA may only deny voluntary moves/relocations. Involuntary moves/relocations by the tenant may not be denied by the PHA regardless of the timing of such relocation. Involuntary moves consist of moves essential to protect the health and safety of a household or family member who has fallen victim to dating violence, stalking, or domestic violence.

Families desiring to move must provide to the PHA an *Intent to Move Form* completed by both the Tenant and the Owner. If the family desires to continue to receive Section 8 assistance, a new voucher will be issued to the family by the PHA with an expiration date sixty days from date of issuance. The PHA may refuse to issue a new voucher for reasons as stated in Section XIV.

Prior to voucher issuance, all required recertification paperwork must be completed by the tenant. The PHA will provide a Landlord Packet (including a *Request for Tenancy Approval*) to the tenant for delivery to the new prospective Landlord. The *Request for Tenancy Approval* must be completed and signed by both the landlord and tenant and returned to the PHA prior to voucher expiration. The participant family may withdraw from the PHA its *Intent to Move* any time prior to voucher expiration. If the voucher remains unfilled at time of expiration, the family's assistance will be terminated by the PHA.

When a tenant moves from an assisted unit with continued assistance, the term of the assisted lease for the new assisted unit may begin during the month the family moves out of the old unit and into the new unit. Overlap of the payments issued for the two separate units does not constitute duplicative housing subsidy.

In the event caregivers separate within an assisted household where children and multiple caregivers are present, the caregiver assuming responsibility for all of the children of the household shall maintain the voucher. Should the head of household as listed on the contract for rental assistance assume responsibility for one or more of the children, the head of household shall maintain the voucher.

B. Family Moves and Retainage of Assistance

Families may be required to move if:

- 1. The unit is overcrowded;
- 2. The HAP/Housing voucher Contract is terminated because the owner failed to comply with HQS or other requirements under the contract; or
- 3. The owner terminates the lease and HAP/Housing voucher contract for just cause by written notice to the PHA, and the family not less than 90 days before termination of a tenant-based housing assistance payments contract.
- 4. The PHA will terminate the HAP Contract and rent assistance to any family that is absent from the assisted unit for more than sixty consecutive days. Exceptions will be made for medically necessary absences, up to a maximum

XIII. PHA Denial of Housing Assistance

A. Grounds for Denial of Admission

- 1. The PHA must prohibit program admission under the following conditions:
 - a) any household member has been convicted of drug-related criminal activity
 within the past three years;
 - b) any household member has been convicted of violent criminal activity within the past three years;
 - c) Any applicant or any household member that was evicted from federally assisted housing in the past five years may be denied admission to the program depending on the reason for eviction. The PHA will obtain documentation concerning the termination before accepting admission to the program.
 - d) the PHA has reasonable cause to believe any household member's drug use, alcohol abuse, or criminal activity may threaten the health safety, or right to peaceful enjoyment of the premises by other residents;
 - e) if any household member has **ever** been convicted for the manufacture or production of a controlled substance on the premises of federally-assisted housing; or,
 - f) if any household member is subject to the lifetime sex offender registration requirement:
 - (1) When screening, the PHA will check within the state where the applicant's current housing is located, and within any other states where the applicant and any other household members over the age of eighteen are known to have resided.
 - (2) All household members eighteen years of age and over will be screened utilizing a background search conducted as well as an individual search of the household members' names and social security numbers at Missouri Case.net as provided by the State of Missouri Courts System and Tenant P.I. (or some other third party commercial criminal history verification source).
- 2. In the event of denial due to prior alcohol or drug abuse, the PHA may admit if the household member has been rehabilitated and has provided signed and

- dated third-party original documentation of such rehabilitation as deemed sufficient by the PHA.
- 3. If the PHA previously denied admission because of criminal activity, the PHA may consider the applicant if "sufficient evidence" exists that the members of household are not currently engaging in or have not engaged in criminal activity for two years prior to admission.
 - a) Sufficient evidence means certification by the household member(s) with supporting documentation, which must be verified by PHA, from sources such as:
 - (1) probation officer
 - (2) social service agency workers
 - (3) criminal records; or,
 - (4) any other document PHA deems necessary.
- 4. Assistance may be denied for any household member who is occupying another federally-assisted housing unit.
- 5. Any debt owed to federally-assisted housing or court ordered to landlord when on a federally assisted program must be paid in full before attending a Section 8 briefing.

B. Use of Criminal Records

- 1. PHA must require every applicant family to submit a consent form signed by each adult household member who is eighteen years of age and older:
 - a) to release criminal conviction records to the PHA for tenant screening purposes; and,
 - b) to allow PHAs to obtain records and use them in accordance with regulations.
- 2. Before PHA denies admission, PHA must:
 - a) notify household of proposed action; and,
 - b) provide subject of record and applicant with copy of criminal record and opportunity to appeal.

XIV. PHA Termination of Assistance

A. Grounds for Termination of Assistance

The PHA may terminate assistance of a HAP/Housing voucher Contract in the following situations:

- 1. If the family violates any family obligations under the assistance program;
- 2. an assisted family has been legally evicted from federally assisted housing in the last five years;
- 3. any PHA has ever terminated assistance under the program for any member of the family;
- 4. any member of the family has committed fraud, bribery, or any other corrupt or criminal act in connection with any Federal housing program;
- 5. the family currently owes money to any PHA in connection with Section 8 or public housing assistance under the 1937 Act;
- 6. the family breaches an agreement with the PHA to pay amounts owed by the family to the PHA;
- 7. the family has engaged in or threatened abusive or violent behavior toward PHA personnel;
- 8. any member of the family has been convicted of criminal activity
- 9. evidence exists of a pattern of alcohol/drug use or other criminal activity by a household member that interferes with the health, safety, or right to peaceful enjoyment of premises by other residents;
- 10. the PHA discovers that any household member is receiving duplicate housing subsidy due to being listed within the household of another assisted unit.

The PHA will *immediately* terminate tenancy if any household member has ever been convicted for manufacture or production of a controlled substance on the premises of federally assisted housing.

B. Evidence of Criminal Activity

1. PHA may terminate assistance if PHA determines household member has been convicted of criminal activity.

C. Consideration of Circumstances - Denial or Termination

- 1. PHA may consider all relevant circumstances, including:
 - a) Seriousness of case

- b) Extent of participation or culpability of individual family members
- c) Mitigating circumstances relating to disability of a family member
- d) Effects on other uninvolved family members
- 2. PHA may impose requirement that any family member who participated or was culpable not reside in unit, and it may continue to provide assistance to remaining members.
- 3. If the household member is no longer engaging in illegal drug use or alcohol abuse, the PHA may consider, and require a submission of evidence, whether member:
 - a) Is participating in supervised drug or alcohol program
 - b) Has successfully completed a supervised drug or alcohol program
 - c) Has otherwise been successfully rehabilitated
- 4. PHA's decision is subject to consideration of reasonable accommodation if family includes a person with disabilities.
- 5. PHA's admission actions must be consistent with fair housing and equal opportunity.

D. Eligibility for Future Assistance

1. An individual whose assistance has been terminated may re-apply for assistance during future application cycles; however, a waiting period will be enforced—as outlined below—prior to the receipt of future assistance. In the following circumstances the individual whose assistance has been terminated may be unable to receive or benefit from program assistance within

the specified timeframe:

- a) Termination for Cause Other Than Eviction or Criminal Activity – One Year from Date of Termination;
- b) Termination for Drug-Related Criminal Activity Three Years from Date of Termination
- c) Termination for Legal Eviction by Owner Five Years from Date of Termination
- 2. Any individual convicted of sexual assault shall never again be eligible for housing assistance as head of household or household member.

XV. Owner Termination of Tenancy

A. Evicting Drug Criminals

- 1. Lease must provide that drug-related criminal activity is grounds for terminating tenancy.
- 2. Activity must have been engaged in, on, or near premises by any of the following:
 - a) tenant;
 - b) household Member;
 - c) guest; or,
 - d) other person under tenant's control.
- 3. Lease must also provide that owner may evict family when owner determines either of the following:
 - a) Household member is illegally using a drug; or,
 - b) A pattern of illegal drug use interferes with health, safety, or right to peaceful enjoyment of premises by other residents.

B. Evicting Other Criminals

- 1. Lease must provide that the following criminal activities by a "covered person" are all grounds for terminating tenancy:
 - a) any criminal activity that threatens health, safety, or right to peaceful enjoyment of premises by other residents (including property management staff residing on premises);
 - b) any criminal activity that threatens health, safety, or right to peaceful enjoyment of their residences by persons residing in immediate vicinity of premises;
 - c) any violent criminal activity on or near premises by tenant, household member, or guest; or,
 - d) any violent criminal activity on premises by any other person under tenant's control.

C. Fugitive Felon or Parole Violator

- 1. Lease must provide that owner may terminate tenancy if tenant is:
 - a) fleeing to avoid prosecution or custody or confinement after conviction for a crime, or attempt to commit a crime, that is a felony (or a high misdemeanor in New Jersey) under the laws of the place from which the individual flees; or,
 - b) violating a condition of probation or parole imposed under federal or state law.

D. Evidence of Criminal Activity

- 1. Owner may terminate tenancy and evict by judicial action if owner determines a covered person has engaged in criminal activity.
 - a) Neither arrest nor conviction necessary
 - b) Satisfaction of standard of proof used for criminal conviction not required

E. Termination of Tenancy Decisions

- 1. If law and regulation permit owner to take an action but don't require action to be taken, owner can decide whether or not to take action.
- 2. Relevant circumstances for consideration:
 - a) seriousness of offense;
 - b) effect on community;
 - c) extent of participation
 - d) effect on uninvolved household members:
 - e) demand for assisted housing by families who will adhere to responsibilities;
 - f) extent to which leaseholder has shown personal responsibility and taken all reasonable steps to prevent or mitigate offending action; or,
 - g) effect on integrity of program.
- 3. If an owner evicts a participant family due to a serious violation of the lease, the PHA must terminate the family's assistance.

F. Exclusion of Culpable Household Member

1. Owner may require tenant to exclude culpable household member as condition of continued residence in assisted unit.

G. Consideration of Rehabilitation

- 1. Before termination for illegal drug use or alcohol abuse, owner may consider, and require submission of evidence, whether member:
 - a) is no longer engaging in drug use or alcohol abuse;
 - b) has successfully completed a supervised drug or alcohol rehabilitation program; or,
 - c) has otherwise been successfully rehabilitated.

H. Added Participant Obligation

- 1. Members of household may not engage in drug-related criminal activity, violent criminal activity, or other criminal activity that threatens health, safety, or right to peaceful enjoyment of other residents or persons residing in immediate vicinity of premises.
- 2. Members of household must not abuse alcohol in a way that threatens health, safety, or right to peaceful enjoyment of other residents or persons residing in immediate vicinity of premises.

XVI. Termination of HAP/Housing Voucher Contract with Owner

A. Grounds for Termination of HAP/Housing Voucher Contract with Owner

- 1. The PHA will terminate the Housing Assistance Payments (HAP) Contract with the owner with a thirty-day notice provided in the following situations:
 - a) the PHA has received insufficient funding from HUD to meet it's housing assistance payments obligations;
 - b) the owner is not in compliance with the terms of the contract and has not corrected the situation following notification by the PHA;
 - c) the owner has committed fraud; and/or,
 - d) the PHA has terminated assistance to the family.

- 2. The PHA will immediately terminate the HAP/Housing voucher Contract with the owner without a thirty-day notice in the following situations:
 - a) the family moves from or vacates the unit for any reason;
 - b) a Judgment granting possession of the unit to the owner has been rendered as a result of legal proceedings; or,
 - c) immediately upon the death of a single household member.

Participants may not be absent from the unit for more than thirty consecutive days within any twelve-month period of time.

In situations where it has been determined that the owner and/or participant have provided fraudulent information pertaining to the Housing Assistance Payments (HAP) Contract and have failed to abide by their contractual obligations, the owner and/or participant shall be held financially responsible for repayment of all housing assistance payments issued to which he or she was not entitled.

All cases involving fraudulent or suspected fraudulent activity by either the owner, the tenant, or both parties, may be automatically referred in writing by the PHA to the HUD Office of the Inspector General.

B. Notice of Termination

Except in the circumstances described within section XVI. A. 2. above, the PHA will provide both the owner and the family a minimum of thirty days written notice of contract termination which states:

- 1. the reasons for the termination;
- 2. the effective date of the termination;
- 3. the family's right to request a hearing, if applicable; and,
- 4. the family's responsibility to pay the full rent to the owner if they remain in occupancy.

The effective date of all Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) Contract terminations shall be the last day of the month following the month in which the notice of termination is provided by the PHA to the owner and tenant.

C. Terminations Due to Insufficient Funding

In the unfortunate circumstance of insufficient funding, the PHA may find it necessary to terminate, without cause, the assistance of participant families and owner contracts. Under such circumstances, the following procedures will be followed so as affect as few households as possible:

- 1. all unfilled vouchers will be immediately pulled and no further vouchers will be filled;
- 2. families receiving assistance, but living outside of the PHA's jurisdiction (beginning with those families receiving the greatest amount of assistance to those families receiving the least amount of assistance); and,
- 3. families receiving the greatest amounts of assistance, will be terminated first (in the event of an identical assistance amount, assistance associated with the most recently issued voucher will be terminated first.

XVII. Complaints and Grievance Procedures

A. Complaint Inspections

- 1. The families and owners will be encouraged to work out problems among themselves to avoid contract termination. The PHA will provide assistance whenever possible.
- 2. A complaint inspection may be requested by a tenant after they have made every attempt to get the owner to correct the problem and allowed the owner a reasonable amount of time to do so.
- 3. If actual deficiencies are found, the owner will be so notified and given a specific amount of time to make repairs—from twenty-four hours to thirty days—depending upon the seriousness of the situation, extent of the repairs required and weather conditions.
- 4. If repairs are not completed by the specified time, the PHA must abate HAP payments until the repairs are completed and/or terminate the HAP/ Housing voucher Contract on the unit.
- 5. If HAP payments are abated, no retroactive HAP payments will be made after the repairs are completed.
- 6. If the HAP/Housing voucher Contract is terminated, the family will be issued a new voucher to move.

B. Grievance Procedures

- 1. Written notices to families regarding PHA decisions affecting their eligibility or assistance will include a statement regarding the family's right to an informal review or hearing, in accordance with PHA grievance procedures.
- 2. If timely requested, applicants shall have the right to an informal review of a PHA decision relating to:

- a) listing on the PHA waiting list;
- b) issuance of a voucher;
- c) participation in the program; or,
- d) any other action as deemed appropriate by the PHA.
- 3. Participants shall have the right to an informal hearing of a PHA decision relating to:
 - a) calculation of TTP or Tenant Rent;
 - b) denial or termination of assistance;
 - c) bedroom size determinations; or,
 - d) any other action as deemed appropriate by the PHA.
- 4. All informal reviews and hearings must be requested in writing within ten business days of the date of action notification. All reviews and hearings will be conducted in accordance with the PHA's grievance procedures.
- 5. All participants receive a copy of the PHA grievance procedures during their briefing.

XVIII.Permitted Use and Disclosure of Criminal Conviction Records

A. Use of Criminal Records

Criminal convictions records received by a PHA from a law enforcement agency may be used only for the following purposes:

- 1. Applicant screening
- 2. PHA determination on lease enforcement or eviction

B. PHA Disclosure of Records

Tenant records may be disclosed only to:

- 1. PHA officers;
- 2. PHA employees performing functions applicable to the family whose member is the subject of the records; or,

3. authorized PHA representatives who have a job-related need to have access to the records, such as hearing officers to the extent required for judicial eviction proceedings.

C. Conditions of Disclosure

1. The PHA determines that criminal activity may be the basis for eviction from a Section 8 unit.

D. Opportunity to Dispute Decision

- 1. If a PHA obtains from a state or local agency criminal record information showing a conviction relevant to screening, lease enforcement, or eviction, the PHA must:
 - a) notify the household of the proposed action to be taken on the basis of the information;
 - b) provide a copy to the family member; and,
 - c) provide an opportunity to dispute the accuracy and relevance of the information before termination.

E. Record Management

- 1. PHAs must establish and implement a system of records management that ensures that criminal records received are:
 - a) maintained confidentially;
 - b) not misused or improperly disseminated; and,
 - c) destroyed when the purpose for which they were requested has been accomplished, including expiration of the period for filing a challenge.

XIX. SELECTION AND HCV FUNDING SOURCES Special Admissions [24 CFR 982.203]

HUD may award funding for specifically-named families living in specified types of units (e.g., a family that is displaced by demolition of public housing; a non-purchasing family residing in a HOPE 1 or 2 projects). In these cases, the PHA may admit families that are not on the waiting list, or without considering the family's position on the waiting list. The PHA must maintain records showing that such families were admitted with special program funding.

PHA Policy

Veterans Administration Supportive Housing (VASH) Special Considerations:

All Veterans participating in the VASH program must be referred to Ripley County PHA by a case manager from the John J. Pershing VA Medical Center following a pre-qualification screening. Participants in the VASH program will complete a background check; however, the only disqualifying reason for denial will be if the individual is required to register as a sex offender. During the briefing appointment, the participant will be issued a voucher expiring 120 days following voucher issuance. The Ripley County PHA will work in conjunction with the VA case managers to provide continued support to each Veteran.

The PHA is also eligible to request 25 Foster Youth to Independence (FYI) vouchers for income eligible foster youth between the ages of 18 and 24 who are homeless or are at risk of homelessness. These vouchers are filled by referral from the Department of Human Services, as required by HUD.

These special admission families are required to be referred to the PHA and therefore bypass the waiting list.

MONITORING PROGRAM PERFORMANCE

The Executive Director will closely monitor the program. Once per year, the Executive Director will conduct a quality control review of the PHA's rental assistance program utilizing the Section 8 Management Assessment Program (SEMAP) review template and procedure as outline and provided by HUD. A random sample of tenant files will be spot-checked for accuracy and compliance with HUD regulation during the annual SEMAP quality control review. The quality control review results will be submitted to HUD electronically within sixty calendar days of the end of each PHA fiscal year, with the final score reported to the RCPHA Board of Commissioners.

Operational discrepancies and deficiencies discovered by the Executive Director during the quality control review will be addressed by the Executive Director with the appropriate program personnel, and a process established to prevent future errors when appropriate. Program openings and voucher issuance will be monitored continually to maintain the desired level of occupancy.

OPERATING RESERVE EXPENDITURES

Operating Reserve funds may be expended for other Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher implementation purposes in accordance with HUD regulations. Any expenditure for this purpose above two thousand, five hundred dollars (\$2,500.00) must have prior approval of the PHA's Board of Commissioners.

FILE ARCHIVAL/DESTRUCTION POLICY

The PHA will maintain, for a minimum of three years following the termination of an assistance case, all written and electronic documents pertaining to an assistance case. During the document destruction process, all paperwork which includes sensitive information (e.g. social security

numbers, dates of birth, etc.) will be shredded by PHA staff and recycled. All other file paperwork will be recycled following standard PHA procedures. Under no circumstances will an original W-9 form be destroyed. All HAP Contracts pertaining to an inactive assistance case shall be maintained by the PHA for three years.

MOVE TO WORK (MTW) PROGRAM SUPPLEMENTAL ACTIVITIES

B. MTW Supplement Narrative.

The five goals of the Ripley County Public Housing Agency's MTW Program are:

- 1) Increasing the cost effectiveness of assisted housing programs. This will be accomplished by streamlining administrative procedures with the intent of reducing the number of staff hours needed and reducing the burden on assisted households.
- 2) Increasing the quantity and quality of affordable housing in the RCPHA service area. This goal will be met through the leveraging of additional housing funds and increasing the turnover of assistance slots.
- 3) Increasing the economic self-sufficiency of assisted households. Guidelines that promote rent reforms and requirements for receiving supportive services that encourage work among households with eligible work-abled adults will be implemented.
- 4) Promoting residential stability for targeted households with specific needs that may be underserved or not well served by the traditional public housing and HCV programs.
- 5) Expanding the geographical choices of assisted households through adjustments to payment standards and other program rules and through recruiting and maintaining the participation in the HCV program of a broader range of landlords. To accomplish these goals, several initiatives are being proposed to be implemented in the RCPHA MTW program. These initiatives are organized under two statutory objectives. These objectives are 1) self-sufficiency and 2) housing choice.

Self-Sufficiency

Short-Term Assistance

MTW Waiver: The agency may create a short-term housing assistance program with supportive services in its HCV program. Proposed Policy: The RCPHA will set aside 10 vouchers to be used for emergency, short-term assistance, including any utility and rental deposits if such deposit funds are not available from other sources. The term of this assistance shall not exceed 12 months. At that point, the tenant must meet a self-sufficiency standard that will enable the tenant to move onto the regular voucher program for the remaining time of the established term of assistance, or graduate from the program entirely. Short-term assistance tenants are required to participate in supportive services offered by partners of the RCPHA based upon the tenant's current needs and established by the tenant's Housing Coordinator at the time of enrollment in the HCV program, with the above limitations taken into consideration.

A client will qualify for the emergency, short-term assistance if they are certified by the South Central Missouri Community Action Agency, Great Circle, the Poplar Bluff Housing Authority, the Haven House, the Family Counseling Center, Catholic Charities, Southeast Missouri Behavioral Health, or any other local support agency as homeless. While the RCPHA will not require persons with disabilities or the elderly to participate in specific supportive services, tenants must have an established relationship with one of these agencies, or similar agency, to document homelessness.

Alternative Family Selection Procedures

MTW Waiver: The agency is authorized to develop its own recruitment and selection procedures for its MTW FSS Program. Alternatively, the agency may make participation in the MTW FSS Program mandatory for any household member that is non-elderly or non-disabled.

Proposed Policy: The RCPHA will require all non-elderly and non-disabled households to participate in the Family Self-Sufficiency program. These families will be placed ahead of elderly and disabled on the FSS waiting list as self-sufficiency will be targeted toward able-bodied households. If a slot is not available in the FSS program, the household will be placed on a waiting list and must participate when a slot becomes available.

Work Requirement

MTW Waiver: The agency may implement a work requirement for HCV residents who are at least 18 years old. Additionally, residents must be non-elderly and non-disabled.

Proposed Policy: The RCPHA will require non-elderly and non-disabled persons to adhere to a work requirement policy. Each eligible individual living in the household will be required to obtain a minimum of 15 hours of work or school per week, documented by submission of payroll check stubs or semester grade sheet from a secondary education institution submitted during the quarterly review process with FSS. Each individual will have access to support services from area employment support agencies, such as the Department of Elementary and Secondary Education's Vocational Rehab services and the Missouri Jobs Centers managed locally by the South Central Missouri Community Action Agency. Failure to comply with the work requirement will result in the termination of the client's housing choice voucher.

Housing Choice

Payment Standards - Fair Market Rents

MTW Waiver: The agency is authorized to adopt and implement any reasonable policy to establish payment standards based upon Fair Market Rents (FMR).

Proposed Policy: The payment standard for an efficiency and one-bedroom unit shall be 110% of FMR. Units of 2 bedrooms and above shall remain 100%. This policy is to assist in expanding the geographical choice of assisted households and promote residential stability for single individual households.

C. The policies that the MTW agency is using or has used (currently implement, plan to implement in the submission year, plan to discontinue, previously discontinued).

submission year, plan to discontinue, previously discontin	iucuj.
1. Tenant Rent Policies	
b. Tiered Rent (HCV)	Not Currently Implemented
d. Stepped Rent (HCV)	Not Currently Implemented
f. Minimum Rent (HCV)	Currently Implementing
h. Total Tenant Payment as a Percentage of Gross Income	Not Currently Implemented
(HCV)	Not currently implemented
j. Alternative Utility Allowance (HCV)	Not Currently Implemented
I. Fixed Subsidy (HCV)	Not Currently Implemented
n. Utility Reimbursements (HCV)	Not Currently Implemented
o. Initial Rent Burden (HCV)	Not Currently Implemented
q. Imputed Income (HCV)	Not Currently Implemented
s. Elimination of Deduction(s) (HCV)	Not Currently Implemented
u. Standard Deductions (HCV)	Not Currently Implemented
w. Alternative Income Inclusions/Exclusions (HCV)	Not Currently Implemented
2. Payment Standards and Rent Reasonableness	, ,
a. Payment Standards- Small Area Fair Market Rents (HCV)	Not Currently Implemented
b. Payment Standards- Fair Market Rents (HCV)	Plan to Implement in the Submission Year
c. Rent Reasonableness – Process (HCV)	Currently Implementing
d. Rent Reasonableness – Third-Party Requirement (HCV)	Not Currently Implemented
3. Reexaminations	Not Currently implemented
b. Alternative Reexamination Schedule for Households	Not Currently Implemented
(HCV)	
d. Self-Certification of Assets (HCV)	Not Currently Implemented
4. Landlord Leasing Incentives	
a. Vacancy Loss (HCV-Tenant-based Assistance)	Not Currently Implemented
b. Damage Claims (HCV-Tenant-based Assistance)	Not Currently Implemented
c. Other Landlord Incentives (HCV- Tenant-based	Not Course why Jacob and and
Assistance)	Not Currently Implemented
5. Housing Quality Standards (HQS)	
a. Pre-Qualifying Unit Inspections (HCV)	Not Currently Implemented
b. Reasonable Penalty Payments for Landlords (HCV)	Not Currently Implemented
c. Third-Party Requirement (HCV)	Not Currently Implemented
d. Alternative Inspection Schedule (HCV)	Not Currently Implemented
6. Short-Term Assistance	Not Carrently Implemented
b. Short-Term Assistance (HCV)	Plan to Implement in the Submission Year
7. Term-Limited Assistance	
b. Term-Limited Assistance (HCV)	Not Currently Implemented
8. Increase Elderly Age (PH & HCV)	
Increase Elderly Age (PH & HCV)	Not Currently Implemented
9. Project-Based Voucher Program Flexibilities	
	Not Currently Implemented
a. Increase PBV Program Cap (HCV)	Not Currently Implemented
b. Increase PBV Project Cap (HCV) c. Elimination of PBV Selection Process for PHA-owned	Not Currently Implemented
	Not Currently Implemented
Projects Without Improvement, Development, or	Not Currently Implemented
Replacement (HCV)	
d Alternative PRV Salastian Presses (HCV)	Not Currently Implemented
d. Alternative PBV Selection Process (HCV)	Not Currently Implemented
e. Alternative PBV Unit Types (Shared Housing and	Not Currently Implemented
Manufactured Housing) (HCV)	, ,
f. Increase PBV HAP Contract Length (HCV)	Not Currently Implemented
g. Increase PBV Rent to Owner (HCV)	Not Currently implemented
h. Limit Portability for PBV Units (HCV)	Not Currently Implemented
10. Family Self-Sufficiency Program with MTW Flexibility	
a.HCV Waive Operating a Required FSS Program (HCV)	Not Currently Implemented
b. HCV Alternative Structure for Establishing Program	

Coordinating Committee (HCV)	Not Currently Implemented						
c.HCV Alternative Family Selection Procedures (HCV)	Not Currently Implemented						
d.HCV Modify or Eliminate the Contract of Participation (HCV)	Not Currently Implemented						
e.HCV Policies for Addressing Increases in Family Income (HCV)	Not Currently Implemented						
11. MTW Self-Sufficiency Program							
a.HCV Alternative Family Selection Procedures (HCV)	Plan to Implement in the Submission Year						
b.HCV Policies for Addressing Increases in Family Income (HCV)	Not Currently Implemented						
12. Work Requirement							
b. Work Requirement (HCV)	Plan to Implement in the Submission Year						
13. Use of Public Housing as an Incentive for Economic Progress (PH)							
14. Moving on Policy							
a. Waive Initial HQS Inspection Requirement (HCV)	Not Currently Implemented						
b.HCV Allow Income Calculations from Partner Agencies (HCV)	Not Currently Implemented						
c.HCV Aligning Tenant Rents and Utility Payments Between Partner Agencies (HCV)	Not Currently Implemented						
15. Acquisition without Prior HUD Approval (PH)							
16. Deconcentration of Poverty in Public Housing Policy (PH)							
17. Local, Non-Traditional Activities							
a. Rental Subsidy Programs	Not Currently Implemented						
b. Service Provision	Not Currently Implemented						
c. Housing Development Programs	Not Currently Implemented						

C. MTW Activities Plan that Ripley County Plans to Implement in the Submission Year or Is Currently Implementin

1.f. - Minimum Rent (HCV)

Currently, voucher holders are required to pay a minimum rent amounting to \$50 (unless the voucher holder meets one of the

hardship exemption criteria) of their income for rent at the time of initial lease-up if the voucher holder has zero income. If the

voucher holders has an income in the amount of \$2,000 or higher, the minimum monthly rent shall be 30% of their monthly income,

based on their annual reported income. The goal of the minimum rent is to ensure voucher holders have some investment in their

own expenses if they have the means to do so. This is a current policy of the Ripley County Public Housing Agency (RCPHA) and is

not new to the RCPHA's MTW program. Elderly and disabled persons are excluded from this requirement.

This MTW activity serves the following statutory objectives: Self-sufficiency

This MTW activity serves the following statutory objectives:

Neutral (no cost implications)

An MTW activity may apply to new admissions only, to currently assisted households only, or to both new admissions and currently assisted households. The MTW activity applies to all assisted households

N/A

This MTW activity requires a Hardship Policy. The Hardship Policy is attached.

Attached Hardship policy applies to: 1.f. - Minimum Rent (HCV)

2.b. - Payment Standards- Fair Market Rents (HCV)

12.b. - Work Requirement (HCV)}

The hardship policy has been modified based on following considerations:

Adding a hardship policy for the Payment Standards and Work Requirement activities.

No hardship were requested in the most recent fiscal year.

In the prior year, under this activity, Ripley County MTW agency

Received 0 hardship requests

Approved hardship requests

Denied hardship requests

There is\are hardship requests pending.

This MTW activity requires an Impact Analysis. The Impact Analysis is attached.

The Impact Analysis that applies to this MTW activity also applies to the following MTW activities:

1.f. - Minimum Rent (HCV)

2.b. - Payment Standards- Fair Market Rents (HCV)

12.b. - Work Requirement (HCV)

minimum rent or minimum Total Tenant Payment (TTP) - \$50

1.h. - Total Tenant Payment as a Percentage of Gross Income (HCV)

This activity is not currently going to be implemented. Any information that remains is an artifact of the activity being previously selected for implementation. This display issue will be fixed in a future release.

This activity is not currently going to be implemented. Any information that remains is an artifact of the activity being previously selected for implementation. This display issue will be fixed in a future release.

No hardship were requested in the most recent fiscal year.

In the prior year, under this activity, Ripley County MTW agency

Received 0 hardship requests

Approved hardship requests

Denied hardship requests

There is\are hardship requests pending.

Percentage of income will equal 0.00% of the Total Tenant Payment (TTP)

Income basis for calculating Total Tenant Payment is:

1.I. - Fixed Subsidy (HCV)

This activity is not currently going to be implemented. Any information that remains is an artifact of the activity being previously selected for implementation. This display issue will be fixed in a future release.

This activity is not currently going to be implemented. Any information that remains is an artifact of the activity being previously selected for implementation. This display issue will be fixed in a future release.

No hardship were requested in the most recent fiscal year.

In the prior year, under this activity, Ripley County MTW agency

Received 0 hardship requests

Approved hardship requests

Denied hardship requests

There is\are hardship requests pending.

This activity is not currently going to be implemented. Any information that remains is an artifact of the activity being previously selected for implementation. This display issue will be fixed in a future release.

This activity is not currently going to be implemented. Any information that remains is an artifact of the activity being previously selected for implementation. This display issue will be fixed in a future release. households are currently subject to this policy.

Table 1.I.1 - What is the fixed rent/subsidy for each of the following unit sizes?

Unit Size	Subsidy Amount - HCV
Studio/Efficiency	0
One-bedroom	0
Two-bedroom	0
Three-bedroom	0
Four or more bedrooms	0

1.n. - Utility Reimbursements (HCV)

This activity is not currently going to be implemented. Any information that remains is an artifact of the activity being previously selected for implementation. This display issue will be fixed in a future release.

This activity is not currently going to be implemented. Any information that remains is an artifact of the activity being previously selected for implementation. This display issue will be fixed in a future release.

No hardship were requested in the most recent fiscal year.

In the prior year, under this activity, Ripley County MTW agency

Received 0 hardship requests

Approved hardship requests

Denied hardship requests

There is\are hardship requests pending.

2.b. - Payment Standards- Fair Market Rents (HCV)

MTW Waiver: The agency is authorized to adopt and implement any reasonable policy to establish payment standards based upon Fair Market Rents (FMR).

Proposed Policy: The payment standard for an efficiency and one-bedroom unit shall be 110% of FMR. Units of 2 bedrooms and above shall remain 100%. This policy is to assist in expanding the geographical choice of assisted households and promote residential stability for single individual households.

This MTW activity serves the following statutory objectives:

Housing choice

This MTW activity serves the following statutory objectives:

Increased expenditures

An MTW activity may apply to new admissions only, to currently assisted households only, or to both new admissions and currently assisted households. The MTW activity applies to all assisted households

N/A

This MTW activity requires a Hardship Policy. The Hardship Policy is attached.

No hardship were requested in the most recent fiscal year.

In the prior year, under this activity, Ripley County MTW agency

Received 0 hardship requests

Approved hardship requests

Denied hardship requests

There is\are hardship requests pending.

This MTW activity requires an Impact Analysis. The Impact Analysis is attached.

The Impact Analysis that applies to this MTW activity also applies to the following MTW activities:

- 1.f. Minimum Rent (HCV)
- 2.b. Payment Standards- Fair Market Rents (HCV)
- 12.b. Work Requirement (HCV)

Following will explain the payment standards by FMR: The payment standard for a studio or one bedroom unit shall be 110% of FMR.

2.c. - Rent Reasonableness - Process (HCV)

Annual rent surveys are conducted by the PHA staff to assist in rent reasonableness determinations and will ensure that the rent charged is not in excess of rents currently being charged by the owner for comparable unassisted units. The goal of this activity is to ensure access to safe and affordable housing by our tenants.

This MTW activity serves the following statutory objectives: Housing choice

This MTW activity serves the following statutory objectives:

Neutral (no cost implications)

An MTW activity may apply to new admissions only, to currently assisted households only, or to both new admissions and currently assisted households. The MTW activity applies to all assisted households

N/A

No hardship were requested in the most recent fiscal year.

In the prior year, under this activity, Ripley County MTW agency

Received 0 hardship requests

Approved hardship requests

Denied hardship requests

There is\are hardship requests pending.

Following method is used to determine rent reasonableness and the motivations for using a method different from the standard method: Rent reasonabless is determined by direct contact by the PHA with landlords who have open units and locating the rent amount for those units independent of a HCV tenant occupying the unit.

6.b. - Short-Term Assistance (HCV)

MTW Waiver: The agency may create a short-term housing assistance program with supportive services in its HCV program.

Proposed Policy: The RCPHA will set aside 10 vouchers to be used for emergency, short-term assistance, including any utility and rental deposits if such deposit funds are not available from other sources. The term of this assistance shall not exceed 12 months. At that point, the tenant must meet a self-sufficiency standard that will enable the tenant to move onto the regular voucher program for the remaining time of the established term of assistance, or graduate from the program entirely. Short-term assistance tenants are required to participate in supportive services offered by partners of the RCPHA based upon the tenant's current needs and established by the tenant's Housing Coordinator at the time of enrollment in the

HCV program, with the above limitations taken into consideration.

A client will qualify for the emergency, short-term assistance if they are certified by the South Central Missouri Community Action Agency, Great Circle, the Poplar Bluff Housing Authority, the Haven House, the Family Counseling Center, Catholic Charities, Southeast Missouri Behavioral Health, or any other local support agency as homeless. While the RCPHA will not require persons to participate in specific supportive services, tenants must have an established relationship with one of these agencies, or similar agency, to document homelessness prior to being issued a short-term voucher. Elderly and disabled individuals will not be required to participate in supportive services to maintain housing subsidy.

This activity supports the PHA's goal of self-sufficiency. Once an individual has stable housing, other self-supportive activities are available to the individual.

This MTW activity serves the following statutory objectives:

Self-sufficiency

This MTW activity serves the following statutory objectives:

Neutral (no cost implications)

An MTW activity may apply to new admissions only, to currently assisted households only, or to both new admissions and currently assisted households. The MTW activity applies to all assisted households

This activity will be implemented with the MTW program.

No hardship were requested in the most recent fiscal year.

In the prior year, under this activity, Ripley County MTW agency

Received 0 hardship requests

Approved hardship requests

Denied hardship requests

There is\are hardship requests pending.

The term of assistance is 12 months

Following is how the tenant contribution was established: The tenant contribution will be based upon regular HCV minimum rent requirements. If the tenant is zero income, the minimum payment will be \$50 per the PHA's administrative plan.

10 households are expected to be served in this program in the Fiscal Year.

Following is how participants will be offered the opportunity to transition to the HCV or public housing (as applicable) program subject to availability: The tenant will be given 6 months to obtain employment, provided they are non-elderly and non-disabled individuals. Once employment is obtained, the tenant will enter the family self-sufficiency program and will follow all other MTW requirements, such as the work requirement. At the conclusion of 12 months of stability, the tenant will transition into the regular HCV program.

Following is the list of partner organizations and the services that each provides: Haven House - domestic violence shelter. United Gospel Rescue Mission - men's homeless shelter. Family Counseling Center - mental health counseling center. Great Circle - woman's homeless and domestic violence shelter.

7.b. - Term-Limited Assistance (HCV)

This activity is not currently going to be implemented. Any information that remains is an artifact of the activity being previously selected for implementation. This display issue will be fixed in a future release.

This activity is not currently going to be implemented. Any information that remains is an artifact of the activity being previously selected for implementation. This display issue will be fixed in a future release.

No hardship were requested in the most recent fiscal year.

In the prior year, under this activity, Ripley County MTW agency

Received 0 hardship requests

Approved hardship requests

Denied hardship requests

There is\are hardship requests pending.

The following is how households will be supported to prepare for the end of assistance: This activity is not currently going to be implemented. Any information that remains is an artifact of the activity being previously selected for implementation. This display issue will be fixed in a future release.

0 households are currently subject to this policy.

11.a.HCV - Alternative Family Selection Procedures (HCV)

All non-elderly, non-disabled individuals will be required to participate in the Family Self-Sufficiency program. These persons will be given a preference ahead of elderly and disabled persons on the FSS waiting list as the goal of the FSS program is to get those able-bodied individuals the tools they need to become self-sufficient. The FSS program at the PHA is currently only funded for one FTE FSS Coordinator. One coordinator can serve 40 tenants. Tenants will be placed on the FSS waiting list until a slot becomes available. The PHA will also pursue funding for a second FSS Coordinator position at the next application cycle.

A hardship policy will be developed and adopted in accordance with MTW guidance prior to implementation.

Participation in the family-self sufficiency program is not mandatory for individuals that do not meet the definition of an eligible family at section 23(n)(3) of the U.S. Housing Act of 1937 (1937 Act) and those exempted from the Community Service Requirement under section 12(c)(2)(A), (B), (D) and (E) of the 1937 Act.

If housing subsidy or tenancy is terminated for alleged violation of mandatory Self- Sufficiency Program participation, the family will be entitled to a hearing under the agency&apos:s HCV appeals hearing process.

Income increases during a family's participation in the MTW Self-Sufficiency Program will not change a family's eligibility

status for purposes of participation in the MTW Self-Sufficiency Program or for the receipt of public housing or HCV assistance.

This MTW activity serves the following statutory objectives:

Self-sufficiency

This MTW activity serves the following statutory objectives:

Increased expenditures

An MTW activity may apply to new admissions only, to currently assisted households only, or to both new admissions and currently assisted households. The MTW activity applies to all assisted households

N/A

No hardship were requested in the most recent fiscal year.

In the prior year, under this activity, Ripley County MTW agency

Received 0 hardship requests

Approved hardship requests

Denied hardship requests

There is\are hardship requests pending.

12.b. - Work Requirement (HCV)

MTW Waiver: The agency may implement a work requirement for HCV residents who are at least 18 years old. Additionally, residents must be non-elderly and non-disabled.

Proposed Policy: The RCPHA will require non-elderly and non-disabled persons to adhere to a work requirement policy. Each eligible individual living in the household will be required to obtain a minimum of 15 hours of work or the equivalent of part-time education per

week, documented by submission of payroll check stubs or semester grade sheet from a secondary education institution submitted during the quarterly review process with FSS. Each individual will have access to support services from area employment support agencies, such as the Department of Elementary and Secondary Education's Vocational Rehab services and the Missouri Jobs Centers managed locally by the South Central Missouri Community Action Agency. Failure to comply with the work requirement will result in the termination of the client's housing choice voucher.

MTW Waiver: The agency may implement a work requirement for HCV residents who are at least 18 years old. Additionally, residents must be non-elderly and non-disabled.

Proposed Policy: The RCPHA will require non-elderly and non-disabled persons to adhere to a work requirement policy. Each eligible individual living in the household will be required to obtain a minimum of 15 hours of work or school per week, documented by submission of payroll check stubs or semester grade sheet from a secondary education institution submitted during the quarterly review process with FSS. Each individual will have access to support services from area employment support agencies, such as the Department of Elementary and Secondary Education's Vocational Rehab services and the Missouri Jobs Centers managed locally by the South Central Missouri Community Action Agency. Failure to comply with the work requirement will result in the termination of the client's housing choice voucher.

A hardship policy will be developed and adopted in accordance with MTW guidance prior to implementation.

Participation in the family-self sufficiency program is not mandatory for individuals that do not meet the definition of an eligible family at section 23(n)(3) of the U.S. Housing Act of 1937 (1937 Act) and those exempted from the Community Service Requirement under section 12(c)(2)(A), (B), (D) and (E) of the 1937 Act.

If housing subsidy or tenancy is terminated for alleged violation of mandatory Self- Sufficiency Program participation, the family will be entitled to a hearing under the agency's HCV appeals hearing process.

Income increases during a family's participation in the MTW Self-Sufficiency Program will not change a family's eligibility

status for purposes of participation in the MTW Self-Sufficiency Program or for the receipt of public housing or HCV assistance.

This activity supports the PHA's goal of self-sufficiency and will enable the PHA to serve more persons in need once current tenants become self-sufficient and can leave the program.

This MTW activity serves the following statutory objectives:

Self-sufficiency

This MTW activity serves the following statutory objectives:

Decreased expenditures

An MTW activity may apply to new admissions only, to currently assisted households only, or to both new admissions and currently assisted households. The MTW activity applies only to a subset or subsets of assisted households

This MTW activity applies to:

New admissions and currently assisted households

An MTW activity may apply to all family types or to selected family types (i.e., non-elderly\non-disabled, elderly, disabled, other).

The MTW activity applies only to selected family types

The MTW activity applies to all tenant-based units

This activity will be implemented with the MTW program.

This MTW activity requires a Hardship Policy. The Hardship Policy is attached.

No hardship were requested in the most recent fiscal year.

In the prior year, under this activity, Ripley County MTW agency

Received 0 hardship requests

Approved hardship requests

Denied hardship requests

There is\are hardship requests pending.

This MTW activity requires an Impact Analysis. The Impact Analysis is attached.

The following counts as work under this activity: Each eligible individual living in the household will be required to obtain a minimum of 15 hours of work or school per week, documented by submission of payroll check stubs or semester grade sheet from a secondary education institution submitted during the quarterly review process with FSS.

The following is how will the MTW agency monitor compliance: A quarterly review will be conducted with the tenant's Family Self-Sufficiency Coordinator.

The following supportive services are offered to support households: Each individual will have access to support services from area employment support agencies, such as the Department of Elementary and Secondary Education's Vocational Rehab services and the Missouri Jobs Centers managed locally by the South Central Missouri Community Action Agency.

The following is how the agency address noncompliance with the work requirement policy: Failure to comply with the work

requirement will result in the termination of the client's housing choice voucher.

85 households are currently subject to the policy.

0 households were sanctioned for non-compliance with the work requirement in the most recently completed PHA fiscal vear.

D.	Safe Harbor Waivers.						
D.1	Safe Harbor Waivers seeking HUD Approval: No Safe Harbor Waivers are being requested.						

E.	Agency-Specific Waiver(s).
E.1	Agency-Specific Waiver(s) for HUD Approval: The MTW demonstration program is intended to foster innovation and HUD encourages MTW agencies, in consultation with their residents and stakeholders, to be creative in their approach to solving affordable housing issues facing their local communities. For this reason, Agency-Specific Waivers may be requested. No Agency-Specific Waivers are being requested.
E.2	Agency-Specific Waiver(s) for which HUD Approval has been Received: MTW Agency does not have approved Agency-Specific Waivers

F.	Public Housing Operating Subsidy Grant Reporting.					
F.1	Total Public Housing Operating subsidy amount authorized, disbursed by 9/30, remaining, and deadline for disbursement, by Federal Fiscal Year for each year the PHA is designated an MTW agency.					

Federal Fiscal Year (FFY)	Total Operating Subsidy Authorized Amount	How Much PHA Disbursed by the 9/30 Reporting Period	Remaining Not Yet Disbursed	Deadline
2021	\$425,112	\$460,216	\$0	2021-06-30

G.	MTW Statutory Requirements.
	75% Very Low Income – Local, Non-Traditional.
G.1	HUD will verify compliance with the statutory requirement that at least 75% of the households assisted by the MTW agency are very low-income for MTW public housing units and MTW HCVs through HUD systems. The MTW PHA must provide data for the actual families housed upon admission during the PHA's most recently completed Fiscal Year for its Local, Non-Traditional program households.

Income Level	Number of Local, Non-Traditional Households Admitted in the Fiscal Year*
80%-50% Area Median Income	11
49%-30% Area Median Income	0
Below 30% Area Median Income	89
Total Local, Non-Traditional Households	100

^{*}Local, non-traditional income data must be provided in the MTW Supplement form until such time that it can be submitted in IMS-PIC or other HUD system.

G.2 Establishing Reasonable Rent Policy.

MTW agency established a rent reform policy to encourage employment and self-sufficiency

G.3	Substantially the Same (STS) – Local, Non-Traditional.
The total number of unit months that families were housed in a local, non-traditional rental subsidy for the prior full calendar year.	670 # of unit months
The total number of unit months that families were housed in a local, non-traditional housing development program for the prior full calendar year.	0 # of unit months

Number of units developed under the local, non-traditional housing development activity that were available for occupancy during the prior full calendar year:

PROPERTY NAME/ ADDRESS	DD						TOTAL UNITS	POPULATION TYPE*	if 'Population Type' is Other	# of Section 504 Accessible (Mobility)**	,	Was this Property Made Available for Initial Occupancy during the Prior Full Calendar Year?	What was the Total Amount of MTW Funds Invested into the Property?
------------------------------	----	--	--	--	--	--	----------------	---------------------	--	--	---	--	---

G.4 Comparable Mix (by Family Size) – Local, Non-Traditional.

To demonstrate compliance with the statutory requirement to continue serving a 'comparable mix" of families by family size to that which would have been served without MTW, the MTW agency will provide the number of families occupying local, non-traditional units by household size for the most recently completed Fiscal Year in the provided table.

Family Size:	Occupied Number of Local, Non-Traditional units by Household Size
1 Person	25
2 Person	50
3 Person	24
4 Person	1
5 Person	
6+ Person	
Totals	100

H. Public Comment

Attached you will find a copy of all of the comments received and a description of how the agency analyzed the comments, as well as any decisions made based on those comments.

No additional public hearing was held for an Agency-Specific Waiver and/or Safe Harbor waiver

	Evaluations.
I.	Evaluations.

No known evaluations.